







Contents

Acknowledgments	4
Carpet and Interior Textiles Care	6
When to Call in Your PRO ASAP	8
Seasonal or Deep Cleaning Tips	 12
Equipment Check	. 14
Let's Talk About Stains	. 18
Common Problems	. 33
Upholstery	.40
Do's and Don'ts — Upholstery Care	.42
Common Upholstery Problems	.44
Window Treatments	• 47
Do's and Don'ts — Window Treatments	.49
Common Window Treatment Problems	. 52
Who You Hire Matters	•54

Rev. 05052025 | Copyright 2025 Surface Care PROS. All Rights Reserved.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This care guide is provided to you courtesty of your Certified Surface Care PRO Partner. Surface Care PROS is a professional resource and support organization for quality surface care PROS and their customers. At surfacecarepros.com, consumers can find expert answers, solutions, and service providers for stone, tile, terrazzo, wood, carpet and interior textiles, and more. The PROS in this network consist of skilled specialists in a variety of disciplines including specification, installation, repair, restoration, and maintenance. Each one is concerned with the art and science of surface care and they provide solutions that take into account both the aesthetics of surfaces and other important considerations, such as surface functionality, safety, preservation, and sustainability.

Each PRO Partner company is vetted, has signed a pledge to professional integrity, and has earned the right to be designated as a Certified Surface Care PRO Partner.



When it comes to floor and surface care look for the badge of excellence.

The information provided in this guide is intended for general educational purposes and is consistent with current industry standards for carpet and interior textiles care. While every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, individual conditions and materials may vary. Always consult your PRO for specific recommendations or concerns regarding your unique situation. The authors and publishers disclaim any liability for damages or losses that may result from the use or misuse of the information contained herein.



Dear Reader,

Your carpet and interior textiles play a foundational role in your decor and we want to help you maximize their life and keep them looking their best.

We are all about professional cleaning for your carpet and interior textiles, but just as importantly, we want to make sure our customers are armed with good, sound care information—there is a lot of misinformation out there—which is why we are so pleased to present this Carpet and Interior Textiles Care Guide. Feel free to pass it around liberally.

When your carpets, fine rugs, upholstery or other interior textiles are in need of cleaning, give us a call.

Our sincerest regards,



Campbells www.campbellskc.com (816) 461-7000

CARPET AND INTERIOR TEXTILES CARE

Carpet can add warmth and color to your home or office, but did you know that it can also result in fewer airborne allergens? (See next page.) Of course, this means that your carpeting —which acts as a giant filter catching and holding dander, bacteria and other pollutants — will require regular and thorough cleaning to keep it looking its best and maintain the healthy atmosphere of your surroundings. With proper maintenance, a quality carpet can last for ten or more years, depending on its location. Not only is this positive for the environment — preventing carpet from prematurely winding up in landfills — it's positive for your pocketbook, helping you avoid costly replacement for as long as possible.

Your upholstered furniture, draperies and other interior textiles are a functional and beautiful way to bring your unique character to your environment. Consequently, you want them to retain their best appearance and usefulness for as long as possible. This guide is intended to provide you with routine maintenance tips and guidelines and emergency troubleshooting solutions.

OF INDOOR AIR QUALITY

In a recent study it was shown that carpet trapped allergens to a greater extent than hard surface floors, resulting in fewer particles escaping into the air. Allergens trapped by carpet did not return to the carpet's surface or the air, even when the carpet was disturbed by walking or other similar activities. Furthermore, effective carpet cleaning - such as vacuuming with a high efficiency filter and hot water extraction reduced both surface allergens and airborne particle counts, maintaining indoor air quality. This independent series of studies was commissioned by Shaw Industries, the world's largest carpet manufacturer and a leading flooring provider, and conducted by Airmid Healthgroup limited, a leading biomedical research organization that conducts health-based research. The data were presented at the 2012 annual meetings of the American Academy of Asthma, Allergy, and Immunology (AAAAI) and the American College of Allergy, Asthma and Immunology (ACAAI).

WHEN TO CALL IN YOUR PRO ASAP

While routine maintenance and quick action can handle many small spills and messes, there are times when calling your PRO isn't just recommended—it's essential. Here's when you should act fast:

1. Water Damage or Flooding

Water from plumbing leaks, spills, or floods can soak through carpeting and upholstery, leading to:

- Mold and mildew within 24–48 hours
- Permanent damage to padding or subfloors
- Musty odors and health hazards

Immediate professional drying and cleaning can save your textiles and your wallet.

2. Pet Accidents That Soak In

If pet urine or vomit penetrates carpet layers or upholstery stuffing, DIY cleanup may not reach deep enough. Over time, this leads to:

- Persistent odors
- Staining that reappears
- Bacteria and allergens

Professionals use enzyme treatments and extraction tools to neutralize the problem at the source.





3. Rust, Blood, or Paint Stains

These stains are among the most difficult to remove and can easily become permanent if handled incorrectly:

- Rust requires careful pH-balanced removers
- Blood can set with heat or improper agitation
- Paint may bind to fibers as it dries

Don't risk setting the stain or damaging the fibers—leave these to trained experts with the right solvents and techniques.

4. Persistent or Set-In Stains

If a stain has been sitting for a while or has resisted your best cleaning efforts, stop before it becomes worse. Over-scrubbing or the wrong cleaner can set it in or bleach the fabric.

5. Unknown Spills or Discoloration

If you're unsure what caused a mark or stain, don't guess. Your PRO can identify the likely culprit and apply the appropriate treatment without risking damage.

6. Lingering Odors

From smoke to pet accidents to "mystery smells," if the odor is still there after vacuuming or airing out the area, it's likely embedded deeper than surface level. Professionals



have deodorizing systems that work at a molecular level.

7. Allergies or Indoor Air Quality Concerns

If allergies are flaring up, dust mites, pet dander, or pollutants may be hiding in your carpet and upholstery. Professional cleaning can dramatically reduce allergens and improve indoor air quality.

8. Annual or Warranty-Based Cleaning

Most manufacturers require professional cleaning every 12–18 months to maintain your warranty. Having it done professionally keeps your warranty valid and your textiles in top shape.

9. Prepping for Special Occasions or Property Sale

If you're hosting guests, preparing for an event, or listing your home, professional cleaning can instantly lift the look and feel of your interiors.

WHY READING YOUR WARRANTY MATTERS (AND HOW TO KEEP RECORDS)

When you invest in carpet or upholstered furniture, you're also getting a warranty — but only if you follow the rules. Most manufacturers require professional cleaning every 12 to 18 months to maintain coverage. That usually means hot water extraction by a certified pro and keeping proper documentation.

Be sure to read your warranty carefully. Note the cleaning method, schedule, and any exclusions (like pet damage or improper products). Then stick to a plan that matches those terms.

Just as important: keep your records. Save every cleaning receipt with the date, areas cleaned, and method used. If you ever need to file a warranty claim, this paperwork can be the difference between getting coverage or not.

Think of it as insurance for your floors and furnishings — follow the guidelines, keep the receipts, and protect your investment.

SEASONAL OR DEEP CLEANING TIPS

Even with regular vacuuming and spot cleaning, carpets, upholstery, and other textiles benefit from periodic deep cleanings. Just like your wardrobe changes with the seasons, your home's soft surfaces need seasonal attention to stay fresh, clean, and in great condition.

Spring Refresh

After a long winter of closed windows and tracked-in dirt, spring is the perfect time for a top-to-bottom clean:

- Deep-clean carpets and rugs to remove salt, mud, and fine dust
- Deodorize upholstery that may have absorbed smoke, cooking, or pet odors
- Clean draperies and fabric window treatments that have collected dust and allergens
- Consider applying fabric protection treatments for stain resistance during spring and summer entertaining

Summer Maintenance

Summertime means more foot traffic, kids home from school, pets indoors, and possibly vacation rentals. Keep your surfaces guest-ready:

- Schedule a mid-year professional cleaning, especially for high-traffic areas
- Spot-clean more frequently to stay ahead of spills and stains
- Use doormats and area rugs to reduce soil buildup
- Keep your vacuum in top shape—clean filters and check belts and brushes



Fall Prep

Before you close up for cooler weather, get your home ready for more indoor time:

- Remove built-up allergens like dust mites and dander from upholstery and rugs
- Clean up after summer fun: ice cream drips, sunscreen stains, sand, and grass
- Address any musty or lingering odors before windows stay shut for months
- Schedule a pre-holiday deep clean if you're hosting guests

Winter Watchouts

Winter brings in more than just holiday cheer. Be on alert for:

- Moisture from snow or rain, which can cause mildew or salt stains
- Increased time indoors, which can trap odors and airborne particles in textiles
- Fireplace ash and soot settling into fabrics
- Holiday spills—red wine, hot chocolate, gravy, wax—better treated sooner than later.

Year-End Tip:

Use the holiday break or new year as a chance to review your textile cleaning schedule. Did you clean as often as needed? Are there areas you've overlooked (like under furniture or behind drapes)? Schedule any missed cleanings or plan ahead for the next year.

EQUIPMENT CHECK

Always make certain that your vacuum cleaner is in great shape. The beauty and longevity of your interior textiles depends on it! The purpose of a vacuum is to suck up grit, dirt and other contaminants which would otherwise mar the beautiful appearance of your home or office, create poor health conditions, and cause your carpets, upholstery and other interior textiles to deteriorate more quickly. Grit and dirt left in carpets and furniture acts like sandpaper, eroding and eventually severing the fibers. You need a vacuum that efficiently removes these damaging particles.

This is not a matter of your vacuum's brand—though that can play a part—it is more a matter of your vacuum's condition. The better your vacuum is maintained, the longer your carpet and other interior textiles will remain in good condition.

Following are some important tips for maintaining the health and efficiency of your vacuum:

Do not overfill or empty and reuse your vacuum bags

These bags are designed to trap contaminants without impeding airflow. The pores of an overly full or reused bag become clogged and no longer allow for air flow. This can reduce the cleaning efficiency of your vacuum by 50% or more. Emptying the bag when it is half full will help maintain your vacuum's efficiency. Keeping plenty of spare bags on hand can help you avoid the temptation to leave the same bag in past it's point of maximum usefulness.

Don't be cheap!

Remember that "you get what you pay for." Using poor quality "bargain" bags may ultimately cost you more in vacuum repair and carpet replacement than you ever actually save. Why? Because poor quality bags will impede your vacuum's effectiveness and allow particles to escape the bag into the interior of your vacuum or back to the floor. This not only defeats the purpose of vacuuming in the first place, but can also damage the motor and parts of your vacuum, resulting in additional repair or replacement costs you might have avoided by using better quality bags.

Change your vacuum belt every three months

The vacuum belt is what turns your vacuum brush, loosening dirt and raising matted down fibers. As the belt becomes worn, it stretches, causing the brush to turn more slowly and with less force. This may not be immediately obvious because the vacuum may still pick up the most obvious surface litter, so replacing

belts at regular intervals will help keep your vacuum at its best.

It is a quick thing to change, but you may want a professional to do it for you, since the correct amount of tension in the new belt is vital—too tight and it can strain your





vacuum's motor and bearings, too loose and you will have the same problem as you have with a worn out belt.

Have your vacuum professionally serviced every ten to twelve months

No matter how efficient your vacuum, not all of the grit and dirt your vacuum picks up makes it into the bag. Some of it will accumulate in the housings and bearings, eventually clogging things up. This can result in a short-circuited or overheated motor which will, at some point, burn out. This may also create a fire hazard.

Over time, your vacuum's attachments will also wear out, becoming inefficient, eventually wearing to the point where they no longer do their job effectively. Obviously, this greatly impedes your vacuum's ability to clean and will ultimately shorten the life of both the vacuum and your interior textiles.

> Play it Safe! Be sure to refer to the manufacturer's instructions regarding the type of vacuum attachment that should be used with your carpet or upholstery. Using the wrong attachment can actually result in **damage** to your interior textiles. If you've lost the manual, the manufacturer's website probably has a PDF version or knowledge base you can refer to.

How do you know when your vacuum has reached the end of its useful life?

One sign is a noticeable decline in suction power. If you find yourself going over the same spots multiple times without results—despite regular filter cleaning or bag replacement—it could be time for an upgrade. Another clue is persistent, unusual smells or noises coming from the motor. Whistling, grinding, or burning odors often signal severe internal issues that a simple filter swap or belt change won't resolve. Physical damage such as a cracked hose or frayed power cord is also cause for concern, especially since these issues can pose safety risks or lead to greater mechanical troubles.

Finally, consider the overall condition and age of your vacuum. As it gets older, parts may become harder to find and expensive to replace. If frequent repairs start adding up, it may be more cost-effective to invest in a new vacuum that has the latest cleaning technology, uses less energy, and fits your current cleaning needs. By recognizing the signs of a failing machine and acting promptly, you ensure you always have an efficient, reliable vacuum to help maintain your carpets and interior textiles.

What to Look For

- Decline in suction
- Unusual smells
- Unusual noises
- Physical damage
- Age of vacuum

LET'S TALK ABOUT STAINS

A true stain is a permanent alteration of the color of the carpet. This kind of discoloration is most commonly caused by acid-based dyes, which can be found in many foods, drinks and household products. Acid dyes are used in the initial dyeing process of many nylon carpets and there are routinely dye sites in the original raw carpet fibers left open after dyeing — the lighter the carpet, the more dye sites are left open. These open dye sites are ready and waiting to form a chemical bond with any other acid dye that happens to come along, unless the carpet has been specifically treated to prevent it. Bleaching can also result in a permanent discoloration.

Put most simply, a stain is a permanent discoloration. The fact is, however, that not all discolorations are permanent. Textile cleaning professionals generally refer to these non-permanent discolorations as "spots." Spots can be caused by spills or collected grit and dirt which mask or dull the carpet's color, rather than actually altering it. With this kind of discoloration, once appropriately cleaned the carpet may return to its normal color. It is important to treat spots as quickly as possible, so they do not become stains.



5 Reasons You Should Consider Protective Treatments

- 1. Your carpet and upholstery will look better and last longer when protected. Soils will release from the fibers much more effectively.
- 2. Protective treatments make spots easier to remove. The easier a spot is to remove, the less detergent and/or agitation you will have to use. The less agitation you have to use, the less time it will take. When a protective treatment has been applied, many spots can be removed easily with just water.
- 3. Protective treatments can help save your traffic areas from becoming destroyed. Traffic area soil is very abrasive and cuts carpet yarns like a knife. This damaging soil releases more readily from protected fibers.
- 4. Protective treatments can make your next professional cleaning more effective. Having protector applied will enhance your next professional cleaning by allowing more soil to be removed.
- 5. Protective treatment can help prevent permanent stains. Beautiful textiles can be ruined by an ugly stain. Protector will allow you to remove spots and spills more effectively, thereby helping you to avoid permanent staining.

Fiber protection treatment forms a sacrificial coating that shields fibers from the abrasive effects of foot traffic and wear, much like wax protects a car's finish.





Spills vs. Stains

Staining is one of the most frequent problems with carpets and it is important to remember that, while the majority of carpeting today is stain-resistant, this is not the same as stain-proof. When there is a spill, it is imperative that the carpet is cleaned promptly, preferably before the spill has the opportunity to dry and become ingrained into the carpet. Using a sponge and water can help to diminish the spot, but be careful not to spread it instead.

Stains are spills or spots which have become permanent, so prevention and quick cleanup are your best options. Remember that detergents which effectively remove one type of spot may permanently set another. Unless you are familiar with the chemistry involved, you may want to stick with plain water for immediate clean up and the services of a professional for any additional resolution needed.

Removing a Basic Spot

When a spill occurs, scoop up any semi-solid debris with a spoon and cover and press the area with a clean kitchen towel, paper towel or sponge to lift the spill away from the carpet fibers. Blotting is recommended because scrubbing not only spreads the stain, but causes it to become ingrained into the carpet fibers. When the towel or sponge becomes saturated, exchange it with dry materials and add weight to enhance absorption and



replace as needed.

Apply a mild detergent solution. Rather than applying the detergent directly to the carpet, apply it to the white or light colored towel you will be blotting with. To determine whether the detergent will discolor your carpet, it is recommended that you test a small, inconspicuous area by exerting pressure or weight for one minute. The spot may require more than one treatment if it is particularly tenacious and some severe stains cannot be removed completely. After the carpet

Dirt & Grime/Soiling

It is impossible to prevent dust and dirt from settling on or being tracked across your carpet. Over time, this will result in a dulling of your carpet's appearance and can aggravate allergies. (See citation on page 7.). Regular and thorough vacuuming, complemented by periodic professional cleaning can keep this to a minimum.

is clean and dry, brush it gently to recover the carpet pile.







Tougher Challenges

Here are some of the more challenging issues you may encounter and the steps you can take to address them.

Removing Candle Wax From Carpeting

Wax stains from candle overflow can be messy and challenging to deal with, especially on carpet and textiles.

Removing wax from fabric surfaces such as carpet, tablecloths and upholstery requires an iron, paper towels, dry-cleaning solvent, and a detergent for delicate fabrics.

The first step is to cover the wax stain with a paper towel. Next, use an iron to re-melt the wax so that it is absorbed into the paper towel, taking care to press lightly and avoid burning the carpet by keeping the iron on for a long duration.

If wax residue remains after you have used the paper towel and iron to lift it several times, apply a bit of home dry-cleaning liquid to a damp cloth or sponge and blot—be sure to not apply the solvent directly onto the carpet—and use the minimum amount of dry-cleaning solvent required to avoid damaging the carpet backing.

Another option is to mix mild, bleach-free, alkali-free detergent and warm water and blot the area with a rag or sponge.





Addressing Red Wine Spills or Stains

First step: blot, blot, blot: If it is a new spill, use a white cloth or paper towels to blot as much of the red wine spill as you can. If the carpet is drenched, place your clean white towel over the spill, then set a heavy object to help the absorption process. Once the wetness is absorbed, follow this with pouring a bit of cold water directly onto the wine stain. Doing this helps dilute what remains of the stain. Continue with blotting until no more of the stain is coming out.

The Dish Soap and White Wine Vinegar Solution Method

If diluting and blotting just isn't doing the trick, try this method, which is not only great for red wine, but also a host of other tough stains. Pour two cups of warm water into a bowl. Add a tablespoon of white vinegar and another tablespoon of dishwashing liquid. Dip a sponge into the bowl and wring out well, then begin blotting the wine spill with the sponge. You should see immediate lifting of the stain, but continue blotting until the stain has lifted completely. Follow with blotting the area with clear water, then blotting dry with a clean white towel or paper towels.

IMPORTANT! Don't forget to test: Of course, your stains don't always cooperate by appearing in inconspicuous areas, but do keep in mind that it is always recommended that you first test any cleaning solution on a portion of carpet or upholstery that is out of the way.



Removing Nail Polish

Removing nail polish from carpet can be tricky, but it's definitely possible with a bit of care and patience. Below are some safe, commonly used steps:

1. Act Quickly and Blot (Don't Rub!)

—Blot up excess polish: As soon as you notice the spill, gently blot away any wet nail polish with a clean paper towel or white cloth.

—Avoid rubbing: Rubbing can spread the stain and push it deeper into the carpet fibers.

2. Test a Small, Hidden Spot

Before applying any cleaning solution, test it on a small area of the carpet. This ensures the product won't discolor or damage the fibers.

3. Apply a Safe Cleaning Agent

You have a few options here. Always use them sparingly and avoid oversaturating the carpet.

Option A: Non-Acetone Nail Polish Remover

—Choose non-acetone if possible (acetone can sometimes damage or discolor certain carpet fibers, though many carpets tolerate it in small amounts). Use a white cloth: Dampen it with the nail polish remover—do not pour it directly onto the carpet.



Blot the stain: Gently dab the stain, working from the outside edges toward the center to prevent spreading.

Option B: Rubbing Alcohol or Hairspray

—Apply rubbing alcohol/hairspray: Lightly dampen a clean white cloth and blot the stain. Check progress: Continue blotting, using fresh parts of the cloth as color lifts.

Option C: Hydrogen Peroxide (for Light Carpets)

—Spot test first: Peroxide can lighten darker carpets. Dab and lift: If safe, apply a small amount to a cloth and blot. Repeat as needed: Don't over-apply—use just enough to dissolve the polish.

4. Rinse and Dry

Rinse with water: Once the stain is gone, apply a small amount of water to the area.

Blot again: Use a fresh cloth or paper towel to absorb excess moisture.

Air-dry: Let the carpet dry completely. Setting up a fan or opening windows can speed up drying.







5. Repeat if Necessary

Deep or old stains may require several rounds of blotting and rinsing. Just be careful to avoid damaging the carpet fibers by excessive scrubbing or soaking.

Tips & Warnings

- Avoid harsh scrubbing to prevent carpet damage.
- Use clean, white cloths or paper towels to avoid transferring dyes from colored rags.
- Ventilate the area when using any solvent or chemical cleaner.

If the stain persists or is very large, schedule a professional carpet cleaning.

With a bit of patience and the right product, you can often completely remove nail polish from your carpet.

STAIN/SPOT REMOVAL CHEAT SHEET

Always test solutions in an inconspicuous area first.

STAIN	FIRST RESPONSE	TRY THIS	CALL A PRO IF
Coffee / Tea	Blot with dry cloth	Mix 1 tsp dish soap + 1 cup lukewarm water	Stain sets or leaves a visible ring
Red Wine*	Blot, sprinkle salt or baking soda	Dab with cold water + dish soap	Hue remains after drying
Pet Urine	Blot quickly, avoid scrubbing	Use enzyme-based cleaner	Odor lingers or stain soaks padding
Blood	Blot with cold water only	Cold water + mild detergent; never use heat	Stain is dry or set in
Grease / Oil	Blot with paper towel	Apply baking soda or cornstarch; vacuum, then use degreaser	Residue spreads or fiber becomes matted
Ink / Marker	Dab gently, don't rub	Use isopropyl alco- hol on a cloth	Ink smears, bleeds, or discolors fabric
Paint (Wet)	Gently blot, don't scrub	Water-based: mild dish soap & water. Oil-based: test min- eral spirits	Any paint dries or spreads
Paint (Dry)	Avoid scraping or pulling	Professional treat- ment required	Always — DIY can damage fibers
Rust	Do not use vinegar or lemon	Use a profession- al rust remover, pH-balanced only	Almost always necessary to avoid fiber damage

Continued next page

STAIN	FIRST RESPONSE	TRY THIS	CALL A PRO IF
Chocolate	Let harden, then gen- tly scrape	Dish soap + warm wa- ter after removal	If oil residue or discoloration remains
Candle Wax	Let cool completely	Cover with brown paper, warm with iron briefly, blot wax	Wax saturates padding or discolors fibers
Makeup (Lipstick/ Foundation)	Blot with dry towel	Dish soap + warm wa- ter, or small amount of rubbing alcohol	Color doesn't lift or stain is oil-based
Soda / Juice	Blot immediately	1 tsp dish soap + warm water	Sugar attracts soil or creates dull spot
Gum	Freeze with ice cube	Once hard, gently scrape with dull knife	Gum breaks fibers or remains sticky

PRO TIP. Always blot, never scrub. Rubbing can fray fibers and push the stain deeper, making removal harder.





Tips for Prolonging the Life of Your Carpet

Make your house a "No-Shoe-Zone."

Place a shoe rack close to the most frequently used door (or doors) and encourage your household and guests to remove their shoes upon entering. This will greatly reduce the amount of dirt and mud tracked throughout the house and keeps your carpets looking better longer.

Further reduce tracked in dirt by utilizing entry mats.

These mats should be cleaned and shaken frequently, since the dirt trapped by them can damage the flooring underneath if allowed to accumulate. This is particularly true if your entry floor is hardwood or a softer natural stone which scratches easily.

Spot-clean spills and other accidents as quickly as possible.

Use paper towels or cloths that are white in order to avoid accidental dye transfer. Unless you are familiar with the chemistry involved and understand which detergents work best with the particular spill or spot you are dealing with, it is recommended that you use only water to do this spot cleaning. Some detergents which are great on one particular type of spot could actually permanently set another. This is not a risk you want to take. A qualified cleaning professional should have a thorough understanding of these interactions and will be able to select the best option for removing any particular spot.





Rearrange furniture at least twice a year.

This will help to alter traffic patterns and reduce uneven wear. Also using furniture glides under heavy furnitue will help prevent permanent indentations.

Vacuum at least once a week.

Focus on high traffic areas, such as entries and around furniture. For best results, don't rush — vacuum slowly and evenly.

For Oriental and area rugs

Be sure not to vacuum fringe with your beater bar. Use the end of a vacuum hose from a canister vacuum. A quality pad used under your rug helps protect it from dirt, wear and slippage.

Have your carpets professionally cleaned on a regular basis.

In addition to frequent vacuuming, its important to have your carpets and rugs professionally cleaned on a regular basis to remove the oily, sticky soils that even the best vacuums can't take out. Regular professional cleaning goes a very long way in maximizing the life of your carpet and rugs.

DO'S AND DON'TS — CARPET & RUGS

Wherever food and drink is consumed, or pets are housed there are bound to be spills and accidents. Likewise, mud and dirt will get tracked in from the outdoors, at least in high traffic areas. These scenarios can result in unappealing marks on carpet or upholstery, which are sometimes difficult to remove. Therefore:

- Do use furniture glides under heavy pieces and rearrange furniture periodically to avoid permanent indentations.
- Do use small area rugs to protect heavy traffic areas.
- Do pick up any spills as quickly as possible.
- Do vacuum regularly and have professional deep cleaning done at the intervals recommended by the manufacturer's warranty, whether it looks like you need it or not.
- Do vacuum the back, as well as the front, of rugs which are not permanently fixed in place, since this can allow for better removal of soiling particles which have penetrated deep into the fibers or the rug's backing.
- Do test an inconspicuous area before applying any DIY stain remover to your carpet—you want to remove the stain not the carpet's coloring.
- Don't rub or scrub a spill—only blot it. Rubbing can spread the spill, drive it deeper into the carpet's fibers, or even damage the fibers.
- Don't use colored cloths or towels to blot up a spill, since their color may stain the area you are attempting to clean.
- Don't do-it-yourself for anything other than regular vacuuming and emergency rescue treatment to clean up spills.
- Don't Drag heavy furniture on carpet to avoid damage such as burn marks.

CARPET CLEANING FREQUENCY RECOMMENDATIONS

How often should you have your carpets professionally cleaned? This table provides recommended guidelines.

Environment	Normal	Special Condition	Cleaning Frequency
Daycare	1 wk	Epidemic	Daily
Nursing Homes	1 mo	High Humidity	1 wk
Restaurants	1 mo	Dusty Conditions	1 wk
Schools	3 - 6 mo	Dusty Outside	1 - 2 mo
Family Residence	6 - 12 mo	Children and Pets	3 - 6 mo
Office Building	6 - 12 mo	Ground Floor	3 - 6 mo

^{*}The above carpet cleaning frequency table is a time-tested public-health recommendation by Michael A. Berry, PhD, and not the U.S. EPA as improperly indicated on some carpet cleaning websites. At the request of concerned citizens, Mr. Berry recommended this frequency table in 1989, at which time he was the director of the U.S. EPA's Indoor Air Research Program. The table was based upon empirical evidence, literature review, as well as the his personal observations and opinion as a public health professional and educator. At no time was the table ever presented as an official U.S. EPA position on carpet cleaning frequency. Since 1989, this table has been presented in numerous publications including Protecting the Built Environment — Cleaning for Health (1994) and the ANSI/IICRC S100 Standard & Reference Guide for Professional Cleaning of Textile Floor Coverings.



COMMON PROBLEMS

Carpeting can be wonderfully luxurious and desirable as a floor covering, but it is not without its challenges. From basic to "call your PRO," here are some of the challenges you are most likely to encounter and what you can do about them.

New Carpeting issues

There are unique issues you may face when you have new carpeting installed. The most common are odors, and fluffing and shedding.

Odors

During and after your carpet installation, you may notice an odor. The cause may be the removal of the old carpet and padding or the padding, adhesives, or seaming tape of the new carpet. This odor will dissipate over time. It is recommended that you help the process along by opening doors and windows and turning the HVAC system on full for 48 to 72 hours. Other odors can be addressed with the deodorizing products utilized by professionals.

Fluffing and Shedding

It is not unusual to find fluff and loose fibers on new carpet. They are the normal result of fibers left over from the manufacturing process and, with regular vacuuming, should disappear within a year after installation.







Loose Fibers/Sprouting

You may occasionally find a single fiber sticking up above the rest. DO NOT PULL IT OUT! Simply trim it to match the height of the surrounding fibers. If this persists in a localized area, you should contact the manufacturer's representative or your carpet PRO.

Problems That Occur With Time

Pet accidents and wine or other kinds of spills are easily (and often immediately) noticeable, but some carpet challenges develop gradually and over time. You may not even realize they're happening until they get pretty extreme. This category of issues includes, but is not limited to the four that follow:

Filtration Soiling

Filtration soiling is when darker strips of dirt accumulate in front of doors, along baseboards and stairs, or anywhere where there is an air draft, including from underneath. Filtration soiling occurs gradually over time. It can be prevented by properly filtered heating/cooling systems, and appropriate sealing of doors, baseboards, carpet edges and so on.

Fading/Color Loss

Fading and color loss can happen for a variety of reasons — direct sunlight, heating system emissions, and exposure to chemicals such as pesticides, household cleaners and so on. One of the most common causes of fading or color loss is the use of store-bought



stain remover. Unfortunately, the only solutions for this are replacement or re-dying. Although curtains and shades can prevent carpet fading, these solutions have the disadvantage of blocking natural light. Shade from trees and awnings can prevent fading to a certain extent, but window film tints that filter UV rays, decrease glare, and refract heat are the best option.

Window film tint can be purchased at home improvement centers. It is thin and transparent and is easily applied to the inside of windows using a water and soap solution (provided with the instructions). The best films filter both heat and UV rays, but caution should be taken when choosing darker films that will greatly reduce natural light.

Traffic Area Wear — Crushing & Matting

Traffic area wear is exactly what it sounds like—the compression and deterioration of carpet quality in the areas most commonly travelled. For example, areas in front of chairs or sofas, and the direct paths between rooms. Crushing and matting both result from heavy foot traffic. Crushing can be mitigated to a certain degree by regular vacuuming. The primary difference between crushing and matting is that matting is when the yarn of the carpet unravels and mingles between strands. This can be caused by an improperly specified cushion, the failure of the cushion, or a lack of proper maintenance. The strategic placement of area rugs, combined with regular cleaning can help prevent these problems.





Carpet Indentations

These can be caused by the weight of heavy furniture. Some of these indentations may be permanent. You can help avoid this problem by using furniture gliders and by regularly rearranging your furniture.

There are two commonly recommended methods for fixing dented carpet. First, the ice cube method. How many ice cubes you need depends on the side of the divot. Place the cubes about two inches apart when using more than one. Allow the cubes to melt and the carpet to dry, then vacuum over the area. Vacuuming should lift the fibers back into place. If any remain down, they can be worked into place using your fingertips, a coin or the side of a spoon or fork, BUT this must be done gently to avoid damaging the fibers.

Caution: Be careful if you have wood floors under the carpet because moisture can damage them. Test in an out of the way area first and take care not to over-saturate the rug.

Avoid using this method with antique carpets, valuable, hand-dyed, delicate rugs, or exceptionally soft to the touch carpets or rugs such as silk or rayon, or on materials that are not compatible with water cleaning.

The second solution requires the opposite approach. You can use a coin, spoon, fork or your fingertips to GENTLY work the carpet pile back upright, and then warm the carpet fibers by steaming the area with an iron held at least 4 inches above the surface. Take care



Blacklight image showing hidden pet spots.

not to touch the iron directly to the carpet's fibers.

Problems Best Left to The Professionals

Many of us prefer to resolve problems on our own, but sometimes we just have to admit that the best way to resolve certain problems is to call a professional to do it for us. And don't forget that fixing certain issues yourself may void your carpet's warranty. Here are a few challenges that most people lack either the expertise, the necessary equipment, or both to address on their own.

Removing Pet Odors

It is important to note that pet urine, one of the most common causes of both stains and odor issues, can be quite difficult to remove. This is because the urine soaks through to the carpet backing and crystallizes there. It can last there for many years. In humid conditions, these ammoniated salt crystals absorb the moisture and release the malodor back into the environment. The only real way to eliminate urine odor is to thoroughly clean the front and back of the carpet and replace the affected pad. This is not a DIY project! Your carpet cleaning PRO will have the training, tools and experience to resolve your pet odor problems. Remember, it is also possible that the odor is coming from the substrate or under the floor. In this case, cleaning the carpet and pad will not eliminate the problem. It may



be necessary to sand, clean and seal the sub-floor or, in some cases, even replace the affected area of flooring completely.

Removing odors from a pet still residing in the home is more challenging because most animals will repeatedly use the same area, so it is impractical to completely eliminate all odors.

Carpet Snags

This is also best left to a professional. Attempting to fix these yourself may worsen the problem or invalidate the carpet's warranty (if applicable).

Split Seams or Tears in Carpeting

If your wall-to-wall carpeting is not properly installed, you may find that the seams between sections of carpet will start coming apart (a problem that occurs when the seams are not glued down properly or the seam is located in a high-traffic area). It's a good idea to address this problem as quickly as possible so that the edges do not fray, or it becomes too far gone for a simple repair.

It is best to contact a professional carpet installer to correct this problem, because the

Image Credits: Middle image above, PHC (www.phcvacuumservice.co.uk); far right image, The Carpet Guys (www.carpetguys.com)



tension of the carpet may need to be released—a job that requires a few special carpet installation tools plus experience in working with carpeting.

Ripples, Waves & Buckles

These issues are the result of poor installation, excessive humidity or drastic change in temperature. They can generally be corrected by your carpet repair PRO or installer using a power stretcher. Some ripples (sharp creases) may not be repairable. Try to address ripples as soon as possible as allowing the to remain may result in delamination.

Pest Infestation (Dust Mites, Fleas, Beetles & Moths)

Fortunately most wool and wool-blend carpets are treated to prevent moth damage and synthetic carpets are generally unappealing to beetles or other insects because they are not good food. The most common pest problem with carpet is fleas. Flea outbreaks can be mitigated by vacuuming regularly and being sure to replace and remove the vacuum bag afterwards. Fleas won't damage the carpet and will die there unless they find an animal to sustain them. Consult a pest control specialist for help with beetles or other insects.

UPHOLSTERY

5 Tips for Prolonging the Life of Your Upholstery

1. Minimize direct sunlight exposure.

UV light can cause fading and, eventually, deterioration of your upholstery. You can prolong upholstery's lovely appearance by taking precautions such as, not placing an upholstered piece where it will be exposed to direct sunlight, keeping shades drawn when the room is not in use, or having protective film applied to windows.

2. Avoid potential discoloration.

When covering furniture, use white or light-colored fabric to avoid dye transfer from the covering to the upholstery. Also, be mindful of what you set on your upholstery—printed materials, such as newspapers, magazines or packaging may also transfer dye to your upholstery. We don't need to tell you not to sit on the furniture in muddy or paint-splattered clothing, right?

3. Try to match usage and durability.

When purchasing an upholstered piece, consider where you intend to place it and what kind of existence it is likely to have. Is it going in a formal sitting room where it will see little day-to-day usage or in the rec room where the kids and sports fans are likely to eat, drink, horse around and/or jump on it? You won't want something particularly delicate for the rec room—that's just asking for trouble!







4. Use High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) Filtration Bags.

If your vacuum requires bags, using HEPA bags rather than the cheapest generic bag you can find can help prevent fine dust particles and allergens from escaping back into the air as you go.

5. Remove pet hair.

And not just because it looks better or keeps your pet-allergic friends healthier and happier when they visit. Your dog or cat's fur may seem soft and fluffy, but left on the furniture it can be just as abrasive as dust and grime.

FOR LEATHER

Take care of your leather and it will last a lifetime. Assuming normal wear and tear, leather should be conditioned and cleaned every six months. Conditioning leather can be compared to moisturizing your skin. The emollient in the conditioning treatment will keep the leather supple, soft, and smooth, decreasing the chances of developing cracks and tears.

For spills and spots

Wipe or blot excess liquid immediately with an absorbent cloth and allow to air dry. Do not use soap or a lot of water, as this may cause more damage.

Small scratches are not a big deal.

The scratch should be gently rubbed with your fingertip until it is gone. Only use a damp cloth (distilled water only) if absolutely necessary.

DO'S AND DON'TS — UPHOLSTERY CARE

While most modern carpeting is widely composed of synthetic fibers, upholstery can be made of either synthetic or natural fibers or a combination of both. Not to mention the fact that you are several times more likely to find antique furniture which predates synthetics than you are to encounter antique carpets. This not only makes DIY care more tricky, it can also make selecting a protective treatment more complicated. For example, water-based protection treatments can work well on synthetic fibers, but not so well on natural ones. Manufacturers have begun to utilize standardized codes to indicate the recommended cleaning method, but these codes generally only indicate the color-fastness of the material, not other important considerations such as its susceptibility to shrinkage or discoloration. In addition, the codes may only be located on sample swatches of the upholstery and not on the piece of furniture itself, and so may not be available to guide you.

- Do educate yourself about the nature and composition of your pieces and the recommended cleaning and/or protection methods and products.
- Do vacuum your upholstery regularly.
- Do rotate your cushions regularly to distribute wear and avoid permanent indentations.
- Do clean up any spills as quickly as possible.
- Do have professional deep cleaning done at the intervals recommended according to the materials involved.
- Don't over-wet your upholstery. This can not only cause staining or discoloration, it can encourage the growth of mold and mildew.





- Don't use any protection treatment or stain remover without first testing it in an inconspicuous area.
- Don't use colored cloths or towels to blot up a spill, since their color may stain the area you are attempting to clean.
- Don't do-it-yourself for anything other than regular vacuuming and emergency rescue treatment to clean up spills.
- Don't place your leather furniture in direct sunlight. The UV rays will bleach out the dyes in the leather and the sunlight can dry out the leather, resulting in prematre wear and cracking.
- Don't assume just because your cushions have zippers that it's ok to put them in the washer to clean them—too many issues can happen. It's best to have them professionally cleaned.

COMMON UPHOLSTERY PROBLEMS

The structure of your furniture can be trickier to navigate than a flat carpeted floor. In addition, upholstery can be comprised of synthetic or natural fibers or a combination of both, many of which may be more delicate than those you would find in your carpet. Consequently, keeping your upholstery in top condition requires knowledgeable understanding of the materials involved, and close attention to detail. Whether you choose to maintain your upholstery yourself, leave it to the professionals, or some combination of both, these are some of the common problems you should be aware of:

Dirt & Grime/Soiling

While people generally do not walk on their furniture as they would their carpets, upholstery nevertheless accumulates dust and dirt over time from airborne contaminants, pets, and transfer from people's clothing. Regular vacuuming and periodic deep cleaning are vitally important to keeping your upholstery in top condition.

Stains

Spills and stains happen, it is simply a fact of life, but how you address them can make the difference between a momentary inconvenience and permanent damage. Immediate cleanup is one way to mitigate or prevent staining, but with upholstery it is particularly important to know how a given cleaning agent is likely to effect the fibers and dyes present. It is also important to blot, rather than scrub or wipe as scrubbing can force the spill further into the fibers and wiping may inadvertently spread the stain.



Water Marks

These marks, also known as water rings or water stains, are discolored rings around the area which was cleaned. They are caused by a variety of things: cellulose browning, the migration of dirt to the edges of the cleaning area upon drying, unstable dyes, or dissolved sizing. In spite of the name, "water marks" can also be caused by dry cleaning solutions or other strong solvents. In many cases, removing these marks can be difficult, if not impossible.

Texture Changes

Delicate materials such as velvet and rayon, among others may be stretched and distorted, or have their "hand" (their feel when touched) altered when incorrectly or too aggressively cleaned.

Color Bleeding

With the advent of more advanced dye stabilizing agents and low-wetting equipment, color bleeding is much rarer than it used to be. Color bleeding is most likely to occur with DIY spot treatments that are overly aggressive or cleaning efforts where over wetting is used. Certain household contaminants can create a potential color bleeding issue that may not manifest until the upholstery is cleaned. This happens when the chemicals deposited react with the water as a catalyst. Color bleeding can also occur from dye transfer from clothing —especially dark clothing on light color upholstery.



Fading/Color Loss

Many spot treatments contain strong solvents or alkaline builders which can cause color loss in both natural and synthetic fibers. While true of both carpet and upholstery, the effect is often more noticeable on upholstery, particularly when only a small area has been treated. Your PRO cleaning service is trained to know which products are safe to use.

Browning

Browning can occur when natural fibers are treated with inappropriate spotting agents or if the fabric is excessively dampened and/or dries too slowly. (See image above left) You may also experience browning with nylon fibers if spotting agents are too high alkaline and drying occurs too slowly. This is something that can often be easily resolved by a professional.

Shrinkage

This is more often a problem with natural materials such as cotton, wool, linen and silk (though rayon is one example of an engineered material which may also shrink).

Odors

Odors can be addressed by a variety of products. However, these can also cause any of the difficulties noted above and their effectiveness will depend on the nature of the odor. It is probably best to at least consult with your PRO on the type of product required based on the specifics of both the odor's source (if known) and the materials involved.



WINDOW TREATMENTS

7 Tips for prolonging the life of your draperies, curtains, and other fabric window treatments

1. Shake things up.

When closing drapery panels or lined draperies each night, give them a gentle shake to help keep dust and dirt from lodging in the fibers.

2. Rotate your draperies and curtains.

When possible, regularly rotate draperies and curtains in high sun-exposure areas to more shady ones to help delay sun damage longer.

3. Vacuum about once a month.

Use a handheld vacuum and soft brush attachment (or the attachment specified by the manufacturer if you have this information) to vacuum your draperies, curtains and valances. If your vacuum has a "low" setting use it.





4. Secure embellishments.

Before vacuuming, make certain that any trim, buttons or other embellishments are firmly attached and not likely to be pulled off or torn by the vacuum.

5. Select for quality.

Choose quality fabrics rather than the least expensive option. You haven't really saved any money if those inexpensive drapes fall apart quickly or become damaged or stained more easily than the higher quality, more expensive ones you actually liked better anyway.

6. Protect from sun damage.

For west- or south-facing windows—particularly in warmer climates—consider having the glass professionally treated to minimize the damage of ultra-violet (UV) rays. Unfortunately, it is a common misconception that any old window glass protects against UV damage.

DO'S AND DON'TS — WINDOW TREATMENTS

Though the terms "draperies" and "curtains" are often used interchangeably, there is actually a technical difference. Draperies tend to be floor length, lined, and of heavier fabrics. Curtains may be shorter, unlined, and of light weight fabrics, including lace and sheers. All window treatments should be properly cared for and cleaned on a regular basis.

- Do use only a mild detergent (like Woolite), cold water and the gentle cycle or your hands if your window treatments are specifically labeled as washable, unless the label provides different instructions, in which case...
- Do follow the manufacturers instructions for cleaning and care.
- Do vacuum regularly with a soft brush and low setting, and have professional deep cleaning done at the intervals recommended by the manufacturer's warranty.
- Do ensure all embellishments are securely attached before vacuuming.
- Do rinse washable window treatments gently and thoroughly.
- Do consider blinds, UV resistant window treatments, linings and regular rotation between sunny and shady locations to better protect window treatments from sun damage.
- Do shake window treatments gently when closing each night to help prevent dust and pollutants from lodging in the fibers.
- Do iron window treatments on the wrong side (facing the window) (if they are labeled as ok to iron at all).



Don't wash window treatments unless they are specifically labeled as washable. If the tag is missing or says "Dry Clean Only" then you should only have the window treatment professionally cleaned. Don't overload the washer when laundering your washable window treatments. Don't wash lined draperies if the drapery and the lining are of different materials one may shrink more than the other. If this happens, the drapery may pucker and no longer hang correctly.

Don't wash pleated draperies—they may not hold their shape.

Don't wash window treatments that have been weakened or damaged by sunlight. Don't rehang curtains or draperies on metal hooks before they are completely dry. Hanging them while still damp may cause the hooks to rust and stain the fab-

ric.





Some Tips for Lace and Sheers

Most modern lace curtains are hand- or machine-washable, as are most modern sheers. This does not mean, however, that they should not still be handled with care. Follow the care instructions on the label and if there are no instructions, assume they are to be only professionally cleaned. Organdy sheers are very delicate and should only be professionally cleaned.

Tumbling your lace curtains in the dryer on the air cycle can help to remove dust from them.

For Your Washable Lace

If you wish to give your lace curtains more body, freshly washed lace can be dipped in a light starch solution.

If, on the other hand, you would like your lace curtains to have a softer appearance, skip the starch and rehang them while they are still slightly damp. If you have metal hooks, insert a piece of tissue paper between the fabric and the hook until the curtains are completely dry. This will help to avoid potential staining from rust.

COMMON WINDOW TREATMENT PROBLEMS

Following are some of the most common problems that occur with draperies, curtains, and other fabric window treatments.

Sun Damage

Sun damage is often not apparent until draperies and curtains are cleaned, at which point, vertical tears may appear in the fabric throughout the panel. These tears occur more quickly in draperies and curtains with heavy sun exposure, but will also occur in draperies and curtains hung in shadier windows as well. Obviously, the more delicate the fabric, the more susceptible it is to damage. Lined draperies are more protected, but are not immune.

Sun Fading

This appears as yellow or faded streaks, predominantly on the folds most exposed to sun light. Fibers in these areas may also appear worn, but may not have torn yet. Like sun damage, sun fading generally becomes most visible after cleaning. It tends to be more pronounced in fabrics of darker colors, since the contrast between the original and faded colors is greater.

Fume Fading

Fume fading, also known as gas fading, occurs when gases in the atmosphere react with certain dyes, particularly those found in acetate and nylon fabrics, causing them to change color, often from blue to red or green to brown. Fume fading often becomes more apparent after cleaning for two reasons: either because soiling has masked the discoloration or because heat during the cleaning process has exacerbated it (or both). Unlike sun fading, fume fading results in streaky discolorations and does not tend to be uniform. If you suspect fume fading, consult your professional cleaner.

Water Marks

Condensation on windows caused by humid or rainy conditions can cause watermarks on draperies and curtains which are often very difficult, if not impossible to remove. Again, these marks may not become apparent until after the draperies or curtains have been cleaned because soiling can mask the discolorations.

Shrinkage

It is important to remember that many manufacturers do not pre-shrink drapes and curtains. You can expect shrinkage of about 4% during the cleaning process.





(816) 461-7000 www.campbellskc.com

WHO YOU HIRE MATTERS

When it comes to carpet and interior textiles care, not all service providers deliver the same level of quality and service. Homeowners should never settle for less than personalized attention, a reputation for excellence, proper insurance, and affiliation with respected industry organizations. Anything less is a gamble — with your home, your investment, and even your family's well-being.

A true professional takes the time to listen to your needs, explain your options, and ensure you feel confident about the care your home is receiving. It's not just about getting the job done — it's about doing it the right way, with lasting results and your family's safety in mind. Certain detergents and cleaning agents still used by some companies today are not safe for children, pets, or people with allergies.





Consumer Reports warns that one of the biggest mistakes consumers make is "being seduced by price alone." It's an understandable temptation, but it can lead to costly regrets. After all, no one would trust the cheapest surgeon with something as important as their health — and your home deserves the same thoughtful care.

The old saying is true: "Some of the most expensive work you'll ever pay for is cheap work." A low price often means sacrifices — lower-quality materials, harsher chemicals, rushed workmanship, little or no warranty, and a lack of proper insurance. While many projects may look acceptable immediately after completion, the true quality reveals itself over time.

When comparing service providers, remember: value is about more than just cost. It's about the quality of workmanship, the durability of the results, the safety of your living environment, and the peace of mind that comes from knowing your home is in trusted, expert hands.

Not all carpet and textile service providers are created equal. Never settle for less than a company that offers personalized service, professional industry affiliations, proper insurance, and safe, family-friendly products. Anything less is a gamble. Low prices alone may look appealing, but real value lies in quality craftsmanship, safe methods, and superior results.



AMPBELL'S
Cleaning and Restoration